APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE
COMMITTEE
2.00 pm

TUESDAY
3 MARCH 2015

Members' Room - Shire Hall,
Gloucester
MEETING PAPERS

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE
TIME:

2.00 pm

DATE:

Tuesday 3rd March, 2015

VENUE:

Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester
AGENDA

ITEM

TOPIC

1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 2)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November
2014.

3.

CONTACT
Simon Harper

Jane Cleaver
Tel: 01452
425096

Public Questions
To answer any written public questions about matters which are
within the powers and duties of the Committee. The closing
date/time for the receipt of questions is 10.00am on 24 March
2015.

Jane Cleaver
Tel: 01452
425096

To answer any oral question(s) submitted by members of the
public at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the meeting, and with
the consent of the Chairman.

4.

Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in
which case a written answer will be supplied as soon as
reasonably possible after the meeting.
Members' Questions

5.

To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time
for the receipt of questions is 10.00am on 24 March 2015.
Pay Policy Statement 2015 (Pages 3 - 14)
To consider the Council’s Pay Policy Statement, and recommend it to
Full Council for approval.

6.

Jane Cleaver
Tel: 01452
425096
Dilys Wynn
Tel: 01452
425824

Traineeships (Pages 15 - 18)
To consider a report on Traineeships.

Published Date Not Specified

Dilys Wynn
Tel: 01452

425824
7.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The Committee may wish to exclude the press and public from the
meeting during the consideration of the remaining items on the
agenda in accordance with the provisions of section 100A of the
Local Government Act 1972 (schedule 12A paragraphs 1,2 & 3)
which are:

Jane Cleaver
Tel: 01452
425096

Information relating to any individual.
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

8.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information).
Senior Officer Review
To summarise the changes to the Council’s senior management
structure.

Peter Bungard
Tel: 01452
425875

NOTES
(a)

MEMBERSHIP – Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Cllr Jeremy Hilton,
Cllr Paul McLain, Cllr Ray Theodoulou and Cllr Lesley Williams

(b)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the
Monitoring Officer prior to the commencement of the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.
Please remain there and await further instructions.

Published Date Not Specified

Agenda Item 2

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Appointments Committee held on Monday 24th
November, 2014 commencing at 3.30 pm.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:
Cllr Iain Dobie
Cllr Mark Hawthorne
(Chairman)
Cllr Jeremy Hilton
Substitutes:

Cllr Dorcas Binns

Apologies:

Cllr Paul McLain

17.

Cllr Ray Theodoulou
Cllr Lesley Williams

MINUTES
Resolved
That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2014 be approved as a correct
record.

18.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS
No questions were received from members of the public.

19.

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS
No questions were received from councillors.

20.

JOINT PROPOSAL FOR A SHARED MANAGING DIRECTOR AND
COMMISSIONING DIRECTOR FOR GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL AND
GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Consideration was given to the proposal to establish a joint post with Gloucester
City Council which would have the dual role of Managing Director, Gloucester City
and Strategic Commissioning Director, GCC.
The Committee noted that this proposal had been accepted by the City Council at
the meeting of the full Council on 20 November 2014. Mr Bungard, Chief Executive
also explained his expectations of the working arrangements for the shared post so
as to ensure that each council received the expected time allocation.

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

Having explored the ramifications the establishment of this post could have for the
County Council and the wider ‘public purse’ in Gloucestershire, the Committee
Resolved
1.

That the establishment of the joint role of Managing Director, Gloucester City
Council / Strategic Commissioning Director, GCC be ratified.

2.

That the reporting arrangements within the County Council’s senior
management structure and the outline appointments process be approved.

CHAIRPERSON
Meeting concluded at 16:00

-2-

Page 2

Agenda Item 5
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE

Appointments

3rd March 2015

Committee Date

Planned Dates

Approval to Full Council on 25 March 2015

Officer

Dilys Wynn

Purpose of Report

Compliance with Chapter 8 Pay Accountability of the Localism Act 2011.

Recommendations

To approve the council’s Pay Policy Statement and recommend it to Full Council
for approval

Resource
Implications

Officer time

1

Page 3

MAIN REPORT CONTENTS
1

Purpose of Report.

The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce a pay policy statement for
each financial year. The statement must be approved by Full Council no later than 31st
March of each year; the latest requires approval by the end of March, 2015.
By way of background, the paper on Fair Pay in the Public Sector by Will Hutton (March
2011) heavily influenced the content of the Act and the overall purpose is to ensure a
greater transparency and accountability to the public, on how public money is spent on
remuneration. In doing so the statement has due regard to the Local Government
Transparency Code (2014) and Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance
under Section 40 of the Localism Act.
The Localism Act requires that the scope of the statement must cover a specific group of
chief officers as defined within the Act as well as the councils’ lowest paid, which the
council is required to define and give reasons for adopting the definition.
The policy statement must set out the council’s policies for remuneration for both groups
above. It must include its policies relating to the:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

level and elements of remuneration**
remuneration on recruitment including reengagement
increases and additions to remuneration
use of performance-related pay
use of bonuses
approach to payment on ceasing to hold office
publication and access to information relating to remuneration.

**Remuneration is defined as salary, bonuses, charges or fees, allowances, benefits in
kind, any increase in or enhancement to pension entitlement, any amounts payable on
ceasing to be employed or other amounts that may be payable by an enactment.
As a result the pay policy statement will require the council to make reference to other
related publications such as the councils’ Pension Policy Statement, policy on severance
pay under the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary
Compensation) Regulations 2006 and the salaries of employees as published in the
councils’ Statement of Accounts as defined by the Finance and Audit Regulations 2011.
The statement must also set out the relationship between the remuneration of its chief
officers and its employees who are not chief officers and the government has provided
guidance on how this should be calculated (Local Government Transparency Code 2014).
Specifically the revisions are:
•
•

updates to reflect the changes to staff numbers and budget;
‘lowest paid’ definition updated to reflect the introduction of the discretionary Living
Wage supplement. This was introduced in September 2014 for GCC employees.

2

Page 4

Two additional revisions will be made to the statement if the Appointments Committee
approve agenda item 8.
Recommendation
The Appointments Committee are asked to approve the attached revised Pay Policy
Statement and to recommend its adoption by the Council at Full Council on March 25th
2015.

3

Page 5

Gloucestershire County Council
The Pay Policy Statement 2015-16
What is it?
This statement sets out the council’s policies for the financial year 2015-2016 relating to
the:
•
•
•

remuneration of chief officers
remuneration of the lowest paid employees
relationship between the remuneration of chief officers and employees who are
not chief officers

Remuneration for the purposes of this statement includes:
• basic salary
• any other allowance or fee arising from employment
• pension
• redundancy pay
The term ‘chief officer’ refers to those defined within the Localism Act. In simple terms
the policy covers the Chief Executive and those posts which report directly to him/her
and also the next management tier below (excluding any secretarial or clerical roles).
The term ‘lowest’ paid is defined as a full time employee on the bottom point of grade B
of the Green Book pay scales. These are the lowest paid employees other than
apprenticeships, which are paid less to reflect the nature of the training and
development role. Gloucestershire County Council has paid a discretionary
'Gloucestershire Living Wage supplement' (currently at a rate of £7.65 per hour) to
eligible employees at Grade B and C since 1 September 2014.
Why has it been developed?
Its purpose is to provide a clear and transparent policy to the public, which
demonstrates accountability and value for money. The policy also meets the council’s
obligations under the Localism Act (2011) and the associated statutory guidance set out
in the Openness and Accountability in Local Pay: Guidance under section 40 of the
Localism Act (2012) together with the Local Government Transparency Code (2014).
The council’s pay arrangements reflect the need to recruit, retain and motivate skilled
employees to ensure high levels of performance balanced with accountability to the
public purse. It recognises flexibility, which is essential in delivering a diverse range of
services, and is underpinned by the principles of fairness and equality.
Who does it apply to?
This pay policy statement applies to all non-schools employees of Gloucestershire
County Council.

4

Page 6

About the Council
The council is a large and complex organisation which is accountable for the provision
of a wide range of key services to a population of in excess of 600,000.
These services range from the maintenance of over 3,300 miles of roads; managing the
disposal of over 280,000 tonnes of waste; the provision of the county’s registration and
coroner’s services; ensuring that the community are protected from illegal trading
practices; planning for emergencies; and the provision of services for the most
vulnerable children and adults in our communities. The council is also responsible for
providing the Fire and Rescue Service and takes a leading role to promote a thriving
economy through supporting economic regeneration. All these demands need to be
balanced against a very tight resource base.
The nature of these services requires some of the management team to have a
statutory role, making them individually accountable in law for the services they provide.
This includes the Chief Fire Officer, Director: Strategic Finance (Section 151 officer),
the Monitoring Officer and two directors who are accountable for safeguarding
vulnerable adults and children.
The complexity and diversity of these services requires the senior management team to
make judgements across a wide range of professional disciplines, work with key
partners including government departments and local partners in health and the police;
and manage considerable resources.
The senior management team is accountable for delivering these services within a
gross budget of £420m, through a staff complement of 3594 (including the Fire and
Rescue Service), in addition to employing circa 6,000 in the county’s maintained
schools.
It is essential for the maintenance of public services that councils and other public
bodies can attract talented people into leadership roles, although this must be balanced
with the prudent use of public funds.

5

Page 7

Policy Statement
Job evaluation
1. The job evaluation (JE) process is applied to all jobs in the council unless the salary
is set nationally, (for example, Fire Fighters), including both the highest and lowest
paid. JE is the process by which organisations evaluate job size. The biggest and
therefore most highly paid jobs are at the top and the smallest, lowest paid at the
bottom. The council is committed to fairly determining pay in accordance with the
equal pay legislation (now contained in the Equality Act 2010) and the local
government ‘single status’ agreement 1997.
The council applies nationally
recognised job evaluation schemes, which were introduced in 2003 in consultation
and agreement with our recognised trade unions.
2. The Hay job evaluation scheme is used to evaluate senior manager jobs within the
council. The GLPC (Greater London Provincial Council) job evaluation scheme is
used to evaluate all other posts within the council.
Grades and salary bands
3. Once a job has been evaluated, the score will determine the pay grade or band that
will apply to the post.
4. The pay scale that applies to chief officers is called Executive Reward Bands. These
pay scales also apply to a number of senior managers (who do not meet the
definition of chief officer under the Localism Act 2011).
5. There are two posts which are currently on a spot salary as follows:
•

The Chief Executive
The Chief Fire Officer, whose post is also a director with responsibility for a
number of direct services

6. The council’s policy is to apply the nationally negotiated NJC pay award for the
following groups of employees:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Executives – national Salary Framework
and Conditions of Service Handbook
Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief Officers – Constitution of Conditions of
Service Salaries (for employees attached to Executive Reward Bands)
National Joint Council for Local Government Services (‘Green Book’) conditions
of service (for employees attached to Grades B-L)
National Joint Council for Brigade Managers of Fire and Rescue Services,
Constitution and scheme of conditions of service (5th edition) (‘Gold Book’)
Soulbury Committee national negotiating body
National Joint Council for Local Authority Fire and Rescue Services (Grey book)

6

Page 8

•

Conditions of service in England and Wales (Burgundy book). This relates to
staff employed directly by GCC outside of schools but in connection with
supporting the Local Authority Educational Service.

•

Changes to the council’s pay scale/grading structure are developed in
consultation with the relevant recognised trade unions and final approval is the
responsibility of the council’s Appointments Committee and Full Council. Full
details of the council’s Appointments Committee are set out in the council’s
constitution).

7. Senior salaries of over £100,000
The following senior employees have an FTE salary of £100k plus:
i. Chief Executive
ii. Director: Strategic Finance (and Section 151 Officer)
iii. Commissioning Director: Children’s and Families (and Statutory Director of
Children’s Services)
iv. Commissioning Director: Adults and DASS (and the Statutory Director of Adult
Social Care)
v. Chief Fire Officer
•

Any future changes to salary scales for Chief Officers will be submitted to Full
Council as an amendment to this Policy [Statement].

8. The council has introduced a discretionary Gloucestershire County Council Living
Wage Supplement. The supplement has been paid to all eligible employees since 1
September 2014. Continuation of the Living Wage Supplement and the rate at
which it is to be paid is at the council’s discretion and annual review.
Remuneration on recruitment
9. The same recruitment policies apply to all employees regardless of grade, including
both the most senior officers and the lower paid, who take up a new appointment
with the council.
10. Where there are difficulties in recruiting and it is shown the council are paying below
the market rate for the job, a market rate supplement (MRS) may be paid.
11. The amount of the MRS is based on market rate data and is reviewed annually.
The MRS is removed or adjusted when market data shows that it is appropriate to
do so, or otherwise at the council’s discretion. In the case of certain senior chief
officers the MRS would be agreed by Appointments Committee and for all other
employees it must be agreed by the Chief Executive. Candidates are normally
appointed on the minimum salary point of the grade for the post.

7

Page 9

12. If a candidate is already being paid above the minimum point of the post they are
applying for, the appointment may in some circumstances be on the next increment
above their current salary, subject to the maximum of the grade.
13. The appointment of the Chief Executive and his/her direct reports, including any
senior post which holds a statutory role, is undertaken by the Appointments
Committee. Appointments to these roles are made within the approved salary
range. Appointment of the Chief Executive is subject to the approval of full council.
14. Where it is necessary for a newly appointed employee to relocate in order to take up
an appointment the council may, in exceptional circumstances, make a contribution
towards the reimbursement of relocation expenses.
15. The council will only make interim appointments in exceptional circumstances,
subject to an approved business case.
16. The council is conscious of the need to secure value for money in the arrangements
for all appointments, including the need to ensure any individual is not
inappropriately enabled to achieve a more favourable position in respect of their tax
arrangements (‘tax avoidance’) than might otherwise apply. The council will have
proper regard to this principle in determining the form of contract most appropriate
to the particular circumstances of the engagement.
Increases and additions to remuneration
17. The council’s policy is to apply any nationally negotiated pay awards to employees
at all levels of the council. Exceptions to this will be when staff TUPE transfer to
GCC and remain on their previous terms and conditions.
18. For chief officers on the Executive Reward Bands, incremental progression through
the band is based on performance measured over a 12 month period. Increments
are paid on 1st April each year subject to the performance review, and a minimum of
six months service in post at that time. There is no provision for payment of an
increment at any other time or in any other circumstances.
19. For employees on the Green Book pay scales, increments are awarded up to the
maximum of the grade subject to the employee meeting the requirements of the job.
Increments are paid on the 1st April each year, or six months after the start date (if
starting date is between October and April) and there is no provision for the
payment of an increment at any other time or in any other circumstances.
The use of bonuses
20. The council does not offer a bonus scheme.
Payment on ceasing to be employed by the council
21. Redundancy - The council operates the same redundancy policy for all staff,
including chief officers and the lowest paid. The payment mirrors the statutory
redundancy table but provides a multiplier of 1.75 and is paid on actual weekly pay.
8

Page 10

The discretionary application of a multiplier is permitted under the Local
Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006 (as amended) (LG Regulations 2006).
22. The Appointments Committee makes the decision to terminate the contract of those
chief officers who report directly to the Chief Executive and will, when giving their
approval, apply the council’s policy as set out in 21 above.
23. The council will only make a payment in respect of pension in line with the relevant
pension scheme regulations and its Pension Policy Statement which applies to all
those staff who are scheme members, irrespective of grade. For those posts that fall
within the remit of the Fire Fighters’ Pension Scheme, redundancy pay is calculated
using the statutory redundancy scheme but based on actual weeks’ pay, rather than
the statutory minimum. This group fall outside the LG Regulations 2006 as detailed
above and therefore the council does not have the discretion to consider enhancing
the redundancy payment further.
24. Any payments made in respect of early retirement for fire fighters will be as per the
provisions of the Fire Fighters Pension Scheme(s).
25. An employee subject to the Burgundy Book (Teachers conditions of service) will
receive only the statutory minimum redundancy payment if opting to take an
enhanced pension under the Teachers Pension scheme.
Re-engagement
26. The council does not re-engage ex employees who have left with a redundancy or
pension or other severance payment, for at least two years, unless in exceptional
circumstances e.g. where an employee may have retrained in an area of skills
shortage. A business case is required before a final decision is made and where
any regulations on abatement of pension apply, they would be enforced. The same
policy applies to all employees.
Any other allowances arising from employment
The following allowances apply to all employees, with the exception of teachers and fire
fighters:
Payment for acting up or additional duties
27. Chief officers are expected to be flexible in managing changing requirements.
Therefore honoraria would only be paid in exceptional circumstances at senior
officer level.
28. In limited situations where when an employee may be required to complete work of
a higher graded post or undertake duties outside the scope of their role, the council
may consider a payment consistent with JE principles. Payments are subject to
review and are only for limited periods.

9

Page 11

Unsocial hours payments
29. The council does not have a policy to make unsocial hours payments to chief
officers.
30. For other employees, the council recognises that certain roles and services require
employees to work unsocial hours, or be available to work and therefore on standby.
In these circumstances the council has a policy to provide additional payments or
time off in lieu for eligible employees.
Recruitment and retention allowances
31. Whilst the council does not currently apply any recruitment or retention allowances it
has the scope to locally agree such payments if necessary. The Appointments
Committee would agree any such payments for chief officers and for all other
employees the decision would be made by Head of Paid Service.
Car and motor cycle allowances
32. Reimbursement of approved business mileage is in accordance with the Council’s
mileage rates. These rates, which mirror the HMRC mileage allowance payments,
are reviewed annually.
Election duties
33. Returning Officer Payment – The council is obliged to appoint a county
returning officer who has specific duties in relation to council elections. A
payment is made in relation to this role, which is reviewed every four years, in
line with the council election period.
Additional payments for fire officer posts
34. Any additional payments made to fire officer posts are in line with the National Joint
Council for Local Authorities Fire and Rescue Services (known as the ‘Grey Book’)
and the National Joint Council for Brigade Managers of Local Authorities Fire and
Rescue Services (known as the ‘Gold Book’).
The relationship between the remuneration of chief officers and employees who
are not chief officers
35. The council does not have a policy on pay multiples but recognises that the Hutton
Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector recommends a maximum ratio of the highest
remunerated post compared with the lowest remunerated post of 1:20.
36. In accordance with the Local Government Transparency Code (2014), the council
uses the principle of pay multiples to give a wider understanding of the relationship
between its highest and lowest paid employees. These multiples can be found here
Policy review
37. This policy will be reviewed no later than 31 March 2016 and thereafter on an
annual basis.

10

Page 12

38. The council may amend the policy at any time with full council approval.
revised version will be published on the website.

The

Publication of and access to information relating to the remuneration of chief
officers
39. Further information is available in the following documents on the council’s website:
•
•
•

Statement of Accounts
Pension Policy Statement
Pay multiples

11

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE

Appointments

3rd March 2015

Committee Date

Planned Dates
Officer

Purpose of Report

Recommendations
Resource
Implications

Dilys Wynn

To provide an overview of GCC’s Youth Engagement Strategy
consisting of Traineeships, Apprenticeships, Internships, National
Graduate Development Programme and to approve remuneration
rules for these groups.
To agree the recommendations as detailed in the report for
Committee.
Officer Time
Financial implications as detailed throughout the report

1

Page 15

MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

Background
As one of the largest employers in Gloucestershire and as an element of supporting the
Grow Gloucestershire campaign, Gloucestershire County Council (CC) already
accommodate work experience requests wherever possible and have both an
Apprenticeship Scheme and are active participants in the National Graduate Development
Programme (NGDP). Over the last year, the council has considered how it can consolidate
its offering, and thus enhance our contribution to the Youth Economic Strategy.
The Council recognises that the start of an individual’s journey to employment is often
through work experience, perhaps progressing to a traineeship or an apprenticeship either
within GCC or with another employer in Gloucestershire. Therefore, it is important that we
offer opportunities which will benefit the start of an individual’s career in order to maximise
prospects for future employability and the schemes, some of which are already well
established, reflect this aim.
Opportunities will necessarily involve a mix of paid and unpaid placements. Over the last
year or so there has been wide publicity concerning organisations offering unpaid extended
placements, often called internships. Therefore, as a large local employer, it is important that
the council treats work experience placements with a high level of probity and makes a clear
distinction between short term (unpaid) work shadowing and an individual undertaking (paid)
work on behalf of the council.
Purpose of Report
This report sets out the overall range of schemes; and recommends the introduction of two
new remunerated schemes

Existing Schemes
Apprenticeships
This programme was introduced in 2010. The aim of the scheme is to encourage young
people into careers by improving their skills and therefore increasing their long term
prospects of employment. GCC pays the enhanced national rate to attract a higher calibre of
candidate which also serves to demonstrate to apprentices that their work within GCC is
valued. The Council currently has 16 apprentices.
National Graduate Development Programme
The NGDP is a two year graduate management development programme, run by the Local
Government Association. The programme has been set up to provide local government with
high-calibre managers that communities need by giving committed graduates the training
and opportunities to make a positive impact in the sector. This unique development offer
provides experience in a dynamic, exciting work environment and is seen as a launch pad
into a successful career in local government.
The Council has participated in the National Graduate Development Programme since its
inception and have successfully recruited National Management Trainee’s (NMTs) and have
a good retention rate. As part of the Council’s Organisational Development Plan, the council
plan to recruit one/two new National Management Trainees (NMT) in 2015.

2

Page 16

National Graduate Trainees receive a salary in accordance with the LGA National Graduate
Trainee pay scale. We actually pay slightly higher rate than the minimum “recommended”
amount of £22,958.
Work Experience
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) recognises that work experience plays an important
role in helping an individual to gain confidence in the workplace. GCC already offer unpaid
placements on an ad hoc basis. The proposal is to make a clear distinction between
placements up to a maximum of 4 weeks where no payment will be made and what
constitutes paid work. Primarily placements up to 4 weeks will provide both work shadowing
and opportunities to gain experience and a firsthand understanding of a structured work
environment.
Recommendation
To continue to accommodate work experience requests where possible. However, limit the
placement length to a maximum of four weeks and ensure that it is clear that work
shadowing is the primary objective and therefore will be unpaid.

Proposed Schemes
Internships
There is no legal or officially recognised definition of ‘internship’ it can be referred to as a
placement whilst in higher or further education (usually lasting up to one year). For the
purposes of the proposed GCC Internship Scheme, the key features are that it is:
•
•
•
•

For individuals who are studying in higher or further education
Supernumerary - not covering a vacant post
A combination of learning, development and tasks to meet organisational
requirements
Time-limited up to a maximum of one year (an open-ended arrangement is
incompatible with the concept of internship).

Payments
There is a specific exclusion from the National Minimum Wage (NMW) for work experience
placements of less than one year undertaken by students as part of a UK-based higher or
further education course. However, the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development
(CIPD) believe there is a strong case for paying interns a bursary or salary. Therefore, in
order to recruit high calibre individuals and acknowledge the contribution they make over a
longer period, it is proposed GCC pays an allowance equivalent the local GCC National
Minimum Wage Supplement.
Since internships will be paid, it will be necessary to advertise the internship, to ensure the
widest possible pool of potential applicants is reached and the council complies with its
equality policies.
Recommendation
To approve the above approach and agree that as part of the Organisational Development
Plan to develop this approach further.

3

Page 17

Train and Gain Scheme (in-house)
Work experience is not just for young people; the Council aims to support various disability
groups within the general workforce. Employment for disabled people is a key area for the
Council which can contribute to better outcomes for disabled people. The long term aim is to
provide the next step into work for the individual. A training allowance equivalent to the
National Minimum Wage will be paid for the duration of the placement.
Recommendations/ Funding
Each individual will be paid a training allowance equivalent to the National Minimum Wage
for their age and the Department of Work and Pensions grant would fund the majority of this.
There will be a small cost to the manager - £225 approximately over the six month period
with the remainder (£2400) funded through the DWP Grant. The total amounts to 16 hours
per week paid at the equivalent of the NMW. This rate is for people aged 21+, anyone
younger will have a lower rate but the DWP grant remains the same.

4

Page 18

